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Willow Grove/Redmore's Supply 
Still Pond 
c.1730 

Willow Grove stood on land called Redmore's Supply, patented in 

1678 to John Hodgeson. The tract encompassed part of the present village 

of Still Pond and the old house stood southwest of the crossroads. Two-

hundred fifty acres of Redmore's Supply was purchased in 1721 by John 

Gale, Sr., planterl who subsequently first deeded 50 acres to his son John, 

Jr. in 17242 and then the remainder in 1732.3 The house which John Gale, 

Jr. built at this juncture was very similar to two other 18th century houses 

in the general vicinity - Lamb's Meadow and Lamb's Range. 

All three dwellings were brick, gambrel roof structures built 

originally with their kitchens in the basement. Each had Flemish bond brick 

work with glazed headers and English bond below the water table. Willow 

Grove differed from the others in the use of English Garden Wall bond (1 

course of headers; 2 courses of stretchers) in the second story gable. The 

upper roof pitch differed also in that it was less steep than those at Lamb's 

Meadow and Lamb's Range. 

Prior to its collapse and disassembly in 1978, measurements and 

notes were taken. From these conjectural drawings (plans and elevations) 

were made to illustrate this type period house and its corresponding 

neighbors. 

Willow Grove was a hall-parlor plan house with paneled fireplace 

walls and vertical board partitions. Fragments of the second floor partitions 



found during the disassembly evidenced a featheredge design in that 

location. There was an exterior door in the parlor adjacent the fireplace 

which gave outside access to the kitchen, until a ground level kitchen was 

built later. The outline of an early addition was evident in its east gable. 

This one story wing might have been the same one which appears in 20th 

century photographs and which had been raised to two stories by that time. 

Access to the basement kitchen was also available from a winder 

stair in the southwest corner of the hall. The kitchen fireplace was located 

beneath the parlor and the entire floor was paved with brick. Notes were 

not taken on the division of the basement, but if it were to follow the usual 

design in the area, part of the space beneath the hall would have been for 

storage. 

Willow Grove or Redmore's Supply stayed in the Gale family until 

1811 when it was sold to John Hepbron, blacksmith.4 When the house was 

disassembled a board with the inscription "Lewis Hepbron 1857" was found 

which documents the major remodeling which consisted of changing the 

position of the stair to the northeast corner and making the original hall 

fireplace smaller. The location of the partitions was also changed. The 

enlargement of the frame kitchen may have taken place at this time as 

well. 

John Hepbron built a blacksmith shop on the north side of the road 

leading to Still Pond and gave several parcels along the road to his children. 

Thus, the hamlet of Still Pond developed. In his \\ill, Willow Grove is 

referred to as the "Home Farm."5 After 1891 it appears to have ceased being 

the home farm to its owners and became a tenant house. 



1. Land Records, Lib. JS 8, fol. 170. 

2. Land Records, Lib. 8, fol. 398. 

3. Land Records, Lib. JS 16, fol. 203. 

4. Land Records, Lib. BC 6, fol. 404. 

5. Wills, Lib. 11, fol. 331. 



WILLOW GROVE 
Still Pond, Maryland 

(3rd quarter, 18th century) 

K-235 

Willow Grove was a gambrel roofed brick building, and exemplified 

18th century craftsmanship and design. It appears to have closely 

resembled the Fox House or Deep Ford Farm (K-190) a building 

constructed in 1768. 

The ruins were dismantled by Preservation, Inc. and many bricks 

reused in the rebuilding of 116 High Street, Chestertown. 
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Willow Grove was one of Kent's early buildings, and exel!lplified 18th century 

craftsmanship and design. It appears to have closely resembled the Fox House or 

Deep Ford Farm (K-190) a building constructed in 1768. 

'!he ruins were dismantled by Preservation, Inc. and many bricks reused in the 

rebuilding of the Bruck-Backus Store at 116 High Street. 
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